
Date Published:31 August 2022     

Gloucestershire Police and Crime Panel

Friday 9 September 2022 at 10.00 am

Cabinet Suite - Shire Hall, Gloucester

AGENDA

1  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE Chair

2  MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (Pages 1 - 8) Chair

3  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Please see note (a) at the end of the agenda.

Chair

4  HMICFRS PEEL INSPECTION (Pages 9 - 26)

To review progress made on the HMICFRS improvement plan.

The 2021/22 PEEL inspection report can be viewed here.

Richard Ocone

FUTURE MEETINGS

26 September 2022 (additional)
4 November 2022
3 February 2023
24 March 2023
7 July 2023
8 September 2023
3 November 2023

All meetings start at 10.00am and are held in Shire Hall, Gloucester.

Membership –  Cllr Joe Harris, Cllr Sajid Patel (Vice-Chair), Cllr Steve Robinson (Chair) and 
Cllr Brian Tipper Cllr Ray Brassington, Cllr Philip Burford, Cllr Flo Clucas, Cllr David Gray, Cllr 
Dawn Melvin and Cllr Martin Pearcy
Independent Members - Martin Smith (Independent member)

https://www.justiceinspectorates.gov.uk/hmicfrs/publications/peel-assessment-2021-22-gloucestershire/


    

(a) DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – Members requiring advice or clarification about
whether to make a declaration of interest are invited to contact the Monitoring Officer,
(Rob Ayliffe Tel:01452 328506/ e-mail: rob.ayliffe@gloucestershire.gov.uk) prior to the
start of the meeting.

(b) INSPECTION OF PAPERS AND GENERAL QUERIES - If you wish to inspect minutes or
reports relating to any item on this agenda or have any other general queries about the
meeting, please contact: Sophie Benfield, Democratic Services Adviser
:01452 324094/ e-mail: sophie.benfield@gloucestershire.gov.uk

(c) GENERAL ARRANGEMENTS
1 Members are required to sign the attendance list.
2 Please note that substitution arrangements are in place for Scrutiny (see page 81 of
the Constitution).

      (d)     Please note that photography, filming and audio recording of Council meetings is
    permitted subject to the Local Government Access to Information provisions. Please
    contact Democratic Services (Tel 01452 324202) to make the necessary arrangements
    ahead of the meeting. If you are a member of the public and do not wish to be
    photographed or filmed please inform the Democratic Services Officer on duty at the
    meeting.

EVACUATION PROCEDURE - in the event of the fire alarms sounding during the meeting please leave as 
directed in a calm and orderly manner and go to the assembly point which is outside the main entrance to 
Shire Hall in Westgate Street.  Please remain there and await further instructions.



- 1 -

GLOUCESTERSHIRE POLICE AND CRIME PANEL
MINUTES of a meeting of the Gloucestershire Police and Crime Panel held on Friday 1 
July 2022 at the Cabinet Suite - Shire Hall, Gloucester.

PRESENT:
Cllr Ray Brassington
Cllr Philip Burford
Cllr Flo Clucas
Cllr David Gray
Cllr Sajid Patel

Cllr Martin Pearcy
Cllr Steve Robinson
Martin Smith
Cllr Brian Tipper

Substitutes: Cllr Suzanne Williams

Officers in attendance: Nick Evans and PCC Chris Nelson

Apologies: Richard Bradley, Ruth Greenwood, Cllr Joe Harris and Cllr Dawn Melvin

1. ELECTION OF CHAIR 

Cllr Steve Robinson was elected as Chair for the year 2022/23.

2. ELECTION OF VICE-CHAIR 

Cllr Sajid Patel was elected as Vice-Chair for the 2022/23 year.

5. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

No declarations of interest were received.

4. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 

The minutes of the previous meeting were approved as a correct record.

6. UPDATE FROM THE POLICE AND CRIME COMMISSIONER (PCC) 

6.1 PCC Chris Nelson provided an oral update on activities since his first year 
being elected (13 May 2021) and members noted the following points:

 The constabulary had been strengthened by almost 200 officers and staff 
in the previous year.

 Anti-Social Behaviour (ASB) and neighbourhood crime was down 59%. 
The Commissioner would be presenting to all councillors in the coming 
weeks on the ASB agenda, as requested by a motion at full Council in 
May 2022.

 Work continued to respond to the highly critical HMICFRS report which 
had put the force into Her Majesty’s Inspectorate of Constabulary and 
Fire and Rescue Services’ ‘Engage’ process of enchanced support and 

Page 1

Agenda Item 2

https://www.justiceinspectorates.gov.uk/hmicfrs/peel-assessments/peel-assessments-2021-22/gloucestershire/


Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 2 -

monitoring. Following a change in policy from HMICFRS, a forces’ 
presence in this process is now made public, and has been described as 
‘Special Measures’ by the media. 

 The force was largely on top of improvements to crime data integrity 
(CDI) which was the reporting of reported crime and was now up 4/5,000 
more since the improvement process started. This did not mean there 
was more distinct events of crime, but the reporting of the true complexity 
of individual crimes. For example, what may have been recorded as on 
incident of criminal damage in the past, is now being recorded alongside 
other crime types such as public order or harassment.

 Improvements that were underway would lead to more accurate data that 
could better identify trends in crimes and help victims in the future.

 The number of investigations on reported crimes had also increased from 
around 30-40% to 80% now. This was all moving in the right direction, but 
it was also causing real pressure points in the force due to the increased 
volume of work. 

 The main area that was not making sufficiently fast process was the force 
control room answering 999 and 101 calls. An additional 10 Full-Time 
Equivalent (FTE) officers had been recruited to the team within last year’s 
budget and since then another 20 posts had been agreed  in principle, if 
they were required once new technology and ways of working came 
online. Everything possible was being done to make the required 
improvements, within the backdrop of demand on the service increasing 
post-Covid.

 The HMICFRS improvement plan was the number one priority for the 
Commissioner with regards to holding the Chief to account presently.

 The OPCC had managed to bid for a lot more external funding, last year 
saw an additional £5m plus the Ministry of Justice provisions.

 Gloucestershire was working well with the Southwest Regional Organised 
Crime Unit (ROCU) which worked to tackle cross-border operations such 
as tackling county lines.

 The Police and Crime Prevention Plan had been published, with the 
detailed deliverables due to be available soon. These had been delayed 
due to the teams focus on external bid applications in recent months.

6.2 There was then an update on activity since the previous Panel meeting and 
members noted the following:

 A £7m business case had been agreed for NICHE which was a records 
management system used amongst other forces and was much more 
efficient than the current, reducing bureaucracy for officers. It would also 
make it much easier to cross reference crimes across forces, again for 
criminal activity such as county lines.

 There was also a new HR system being rolled out which has been a 
holding to account issue. The PCC felt the Force was not moving with 
sufficient urgency to improve areas due to its weaknesses in dealing with 
large projects using existing systems.

Page 2

https://www.gloucestershire-pcc.gov.uk/police-and-crime-plan-priorities/


Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 3 -

 The recruitment of Special Constables and Volunteer Police Community 
Support Officers will be increased this year.

 This was the final year of the police officer uplift programme for recruiting 
Police Constables. This remained a challenging project as it was just one 
of many recruitments drives in the force at the moment, the HR 
department was working hard to achieve in all these areas plus providing 
sufficient guidance and mentoring for new employees.

 It was evident however, that the force was still attracting a lot of people, 
even though there were concerns over the starting pay for new police 
recruits, especially in the context of the cost-of-living challenges.

 Restorative Justice was an initiative the Commissioner wanted to pursue 
as an alternative route open to victims aside from the formal court 
system. It offered enormous power in terms of assisting victims, but also 
helping offenders take more responsibility for their crime.

 At a recent meeting with the Cheltenham Racecourse around persistent 
ASB issues during the Festival week, the Jockey Club had seemed 
willing to help out financially to input things such as extra marshalling, 
more toilet facilities etc. which was a positive step forward for residents.

 Operation Vanguard had recently been introduced which allocated 
specialised proactive officers to the three local policing area’s in the 
county, to be deployed into whatever area the neighbourhood police force 
felt necessary and a good use of their skills. 

 The Constabulary-wide efficiency study continued, it used business 
processes to try and improve process efficiency within its operation and 
lead to future improvements.

 Good working relationships continued to build with organisations in 
Gloucestershire e.g., cooperation on training and leadership with GFRS 
plus the new Gloucestershire Road Safety Partnership which was aimed 
at addressing persistent speeding, among other road safety issues.

Questions

6.3 A member raised that the key issue for the Panel at the moment needed to 
be ensuring the Constabulary moved back out of Special Measures (‘Engage 
Process’). They needed to feel confident, via updates from the PCC, that the 
force would be in a much better place come the time for the next inspection, 
and potentially even contribution to solutions via their scrutiny. It was advised 
that Gloucestershire were the first force to go through this new inspection 
regime and it was unclear at this stage when the next inspection would be.

6.4 The Panel agreed that they would like a special meeting in the near future to 
review the progress made on the HMICFRS improvement plan. The report to 
this meeting should consider timescales for the improvements to be 
completed.

ACTION: DSU

Page 3

https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/police-officer-uplift-quarterly-update-to-june-2021/police-officer-uplift-england-and-wales-quarterly-update-to-30-june-2021
https://www.gloucestershire-pcc.gov.uk/pcc-welcomes-the-creation-of-new-crime-fighting-teams/


Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 4 -

6.5 A member was disappointed that female representation on the Panel was 
extremely limited, and this caused great concern as the views of women 
were not being adequately heard, particularly in relation to the rise in crime 
against women and girls. The Commissioner added that the vast majority of 
his team were women, including his Deputy Chief Executive and he often 
sought their perspective on issues.

6.6 It was noted that the Commissioner referenced the number of crimes being 
investigated had risen by around half. The member was extremely 
concerned to learn of the previous low levels of investigations, and very 
much welcomed the great improvement. It was added that the response time 
for 999/101 calls was vital in how safe people felt, especially women and 
girls on the streets.

6.7 It was understood that in the Commissioner’s manifesto there had been a 
promise of an additional 300 officers ‘on the beat’, but earlier this year it had 
been said this would not be possible. It was emphasised there was a big 
difference between having Special Constables and more FTE police officers, 
noting that in Gloucestershire on some evenings, large towns such as 
Cheltenham may only have two officers on call.

6.8 The Commissioner confirmed that he had never said he was not going to 
deliver this manifesto pledge, he accepted it was going to be a challenge but 
at the end of the first year, 200 additional officers and staff had been 
recruited (both types had been recruited as the Chief had requested this e.g., 
additional capacity for the force control room). There was a continuous push 
for recruitment of Special Constables as well, not as an alternative, but 
because he passionately believed in the commitment and care that could be 
brought from a volunteer serving their community.

6.9 On the issue of road safety, a member suggested that there needed to be 
more permanent cameras, in addition to the community speed watch 
cameras to tackle persistent speeding in certain areas.

6.10 It was advised that the county needed to be working towards Vision Zero 
when it came to KSI incidents on the roads. He was pleased to see more 
community speed watch schemes coming forward under the joint funding 
offer with GCC and shared that the force was currently looking at investing in 
advanced digital cameras to add to existing speed cameras or new sites to 
achieve more on stopping persistent speeders.

6.11 It was questioned whether the Commissioner’s work on restorative justice 
would contribute to the court waiting list crisis currently unfolding. It was 
explained that diversion was a big issue in the criminal justice system. Being 
able to divert people away from the formal justice route would help this 
pressure, as well as offering individuals the chance to show more 
acceptance for their crimes and not carry a criminal record. It would also help 
to tackle cultural issues within society of distrust in the police from particular 
communities, as well as reducing reoffending rates. A member raised that it 

Page 4



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 5 -

would be useful for residents to do some good advertisement and 
communication on this to ensure the benefits were clear.

6.12 Members welcomed the update that even more people (not being 
redeployed from other areas of the Constabulary) would be recruited to help 
the force control room. It was noted people wanting part-time more flexible 
were well suited to this area due to its high demanding nature and its peak 
time demands. It was stressed that the problems existing on waiting times 
was not the fault of those already working in the department, they should be 
highly commended for the hard work that they do, they just needed more 
resource and better systems to work with.

6.13 A member raised that one of the most serious problems we had today was 
scamming and fraud. It was an area that Gloucestershire, and all other 
forces needed to a lot more work on. It was noted that it was one of those 
crimes where the vast majority of incidents went unreported, often due to 
embarrassment. It was added the police had some recent success in this 
area with a case of a courier fraud unit operating from London. The Panel 
were advised that it was a difficult crime to investigate and the best 
protection from it was to educate the public. Southwest Regional Organised 
Crime Unit were due to hold a number of fraud safety seminars, details of 
which can be found here: Regional Fraud Protect Advisor Events | Eventbrite

6.14 It was questioned whether the level of pay had become an issue considering 
the economic situation, noting that it was mentioned recruitment had slowed 
down slightly in the previous few months. 

6.15 It was advised that police officers were currently in discussions around their 
annual pay rise. This was something the Commissioner had no direct control 
over but did talk whenever possible with Ministers and other colleagues to 
make sure a decent pay rise was available wherever possible. The real issue 
most police officers voiced was the workload, stress and not having enough 
staff on shift, this was a more likely driver of resignation. But pay was 
something that would be kept an eye on, particularly with the current 
economic situation. 

6.16 It was added that when the PCC referred to recruitment slowing down, this 
meant that given numbers of applications were being made in a week, as 
opposed to 6 hours, so it was important to put this statement into context.

7. OFFICE OF THE POLICE AND CRIME COMMISSIONER (OPCC) 

7.1 The report was taken as read and the Commissioner opened up to questions 
from the Panel.

7.2 It was confirmed that the label ‘Complaints’ on the graph at 2.6 of the report 
represented complaints that did not necessarily sit within policing or the 
Commissioner’s office. A breakdown of the information would be provided at 
the next meeting.

Page 5

https://www.eventbrite.co.uk/o/regional-fraud-protect-advisor-38221318403


Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 6 -

7.3 A member highlighted that the current ethnicity statistics for the 17 
independent custody visiting officers was not representative of the county’s 
communities. It was advised that work was being done across the whole of 
the Constabulary to improve its inclusivity, including the custody visitors. The 
OPCC/ Constabulary Open day will take place on Saturday 17 September 
2022 between 10am and 3pm which is a strong recruiting tool, and the 
Constabulary’s Better Together team will be in attendance, Active 
recruitment was also taking place with organisations such as the Friendship 
Café. This was something they were very conscious of and accepted more 
work needed to be done.

ACTION: Circulate information for the opening day and explore the possibility of 
the Panel visiting the custody suite – Nick Evans/DSU

7.4 A member welcomed the creation of a Gloucestershire Local Criminal 
Justice Board Coordinator post to help coordinate an increasingly busy and 
complicated area.

7.5 It was questioned whether prison facilities underwent Environmental Health 
inspections.

ACTION: Nick Evans

8. DRAFT ANNUAL REPORT 

8.1 The report was taken as read and it was advised any comments would be 
recorded and considered for the final version of the Annual report. 

8.2 It was suggested that it would be useful to highlight the number of successful 
prosecutions that resulted from the various incidents shown on page 4 of the 
report.

8.3 Looking at the same set of figures, a member questioned whether the police 
were happy with the level of cooperation with all organisations related to 
missing persons, noting that historically it was one of the biggest consumers 
of time and resource due to the nature of the issue.

8.4 The Commissioner advised that there was a lot more work to be done in this 
area. The level of demand coming into the force control room and the 
volume of work that each case involved was vast, even if the person in 
question was only missing for a short time. There needed to be a better 
understanding of which organisations should be involved in incidences such 
as, individuals going missing from mental health facilities or care homes, as 
it often was left down to the police. On this vein, it was noted how much 
additional pressure the force was under at the moment in relation to 
attending mental health situations and providing patient transport to hospital 
when waiting times for ambulance were extended.

8.5 On the green agenda, it was confirmed that the estate management team for 
the police buildings were very clued up on environmental improvements such 

Page 6



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 7 -

as heat pumps and solar panels etc. It was advised that the force was quite 
advanced in having the highest percentage of its fleet converted to EV. It 
was noted however that operationally, the current EV designs were not as 
advanced as needed and therefore they were cautious to go any further with 
the roll out  at this stage. There had been instances of officers in remote 
areas having difficulty finding charging points and being concerned about 
running out of power for all the many devices they need to run when 
attending a scene. It was added that the DPCC believed that only 1 of the 
stations currently did not have permanent charging facilities on site.

CHAIR

Meeting concluded at 12:15.

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



gloucestershire.police.uk Slide 1

Police and Crime Panel

Temporary Assistant Chief Constable Richard Ocone

9 September 2022

We are committed to being an anti-discriminatory organisation.

This means not only acting in a non-discriminatory way, but addressing systemic inequalities, disadvantage and discrimination.

Sensitive

P
age 9

A
genda Item

 4



gloucestershire.police.uk Slide 2

. Introduction01
Since PPOG (1 March):

• Visit to West Yorkshire Police (29-30 March) with 

keen focus on strategic planning, FMS, Force 

Control Room and CDI

• Visit to Cumbria Constabulary (18-19 May) to 

assess ICT infrastructure and learning

• Visit to Humberside Constabulary (22-23 June) 

to gain overview of ‘Right Care, Right Person’ 

programme

• Preparation and finalisation of FMS4 utilising 

learning from West Yorkshire Police, Durham 

Constabulary and masterclass from Luke Pavey

• Approval by PCC to proceed to Niche Core RMS 

(26 April) and project establishment

• Recruitment of new DCC - Shaun West

• Restructure of command team to reflect 

retirements and recent moves; T/ACO, T/ACC 

and three Chief Superintendents

P
age 10



gloucestershire.police.uk Slide 3

. Introduction02
Since PPOG (1 March):

• Finalisation of Chief Inspector promotion processes and 

postings

• Finalisation of redevelopment of our Bamfurlong site, 

re-opening this September.

• Establishment of Incident Management and Triage 

function within our Force Control Room (13 June)

• Go live of 3 x Op Vanguard proactive units 

embedded within Local Policing Areas (9 May)

54 arrests

36 for burglary or drugs

17 offenders

Charged and Remanded

£11,000 cash

or more seized

£150,000 drugs

or more seized

P
age 11



gloucestershire.police.uk Slide 4

.03 Causes of concern and 

alignment to Constabulary plans

P
age 12



gloucestershire.police.uk Slide 5

. Force Control Room
Causes of concern 1, 2 and 504

FCR Operational Effectiveness project –
Chaired by Chief Superintendent Jane 
Probert:

• Baseline of 93.59 fte prior to uplifts

• As of start of August 2022 93.3 fte in 
department

• 5 Police Officers also being trained for 
resilience

• A total uplift of 30 fte has now been 
agreed

• Total staffing will reach 123.59 fte in 2023 
(+30 fte)

• Series of IT and telephony upgrades; 
UCCE, NICE voice recorder and Finesse/ 
Cortex

• Installation of SmartSTORM complete.  
Conversion training finalised.  Migration 
to new system allows diary system

Month

of July

Ave daily 

volume of 

999 calls

Monthly 

volume of 

999 calls

Average 

answer 

Time 

(Mean)

Median 

Answer 

Time

2020 232 6973 14.42s 4s

2021 268 8053 23.28s 10s

2022 303 9395 31.11s 11s

P
age 13



gloucestershire.police.uk Slide 6

. Force Control Room
Causes of concern 1, 2 and 505

FCR Operational Effectiveness project –
Chaired by Chief Superintendent Jane 
Probert:

• Recruitment of new Chief Inspector and 
two new Force Incident Managers

• NCRS and THRIVE training and 
templates

• Supervisory and independent audit of 
performance new routine

• Addition of Incident Management and 
Triage function (3 &16)

• Creation of partnership demand board

P
age 14



gloucestershire.police.uk Slide 7

.06
Crime Standards Bureau update:

• CSB phase one live as of 6 June; all VIST now 
subject to CDI review.  Unifi improvements

• CSB establishment of: 1 DI, 4 PS, 24 Police Staff 
and 24 PC’s

• Crime Closure team live: 2 PS and 6 PC.  Quality 
assurance focus on minimum investigation 
standards, VCOP and HOCR compliance

• All staff fully trained in HOCR/NCRS, IT and law

• Mentoring continues for new staff

• Crime Standards Auditors – audit timeline agreed

• Phase two start 12 Sept 2022

• Phase two: crime at point of call (0700-2300), 
Pronto use, crime desk functionality, CSB crime 
policy

Crime recording and 

crime data  integrity
Causes of concern 3 and 5

P
age 15



gloucestershire.police.uk Slide 8

.07
Crime recording and 

crime data integrity
Cause of concern 3

Crime Data Integrity:

• Accuracy remains strong and timeliness is improving:

• Significant rise in recorded crime in 12 months since PEEL hot debrief (June 2021):

• Monthly meetings between Chief Constable and Force Crime Registrar since April 2022

• West Midlands Police FCR presentation to Executive Team on 20 June 2022

• FCR has supported HMICFRS with CDI inspection of another constabulary

• National FCR attending to meet Chief Constable and Gloucestershire FCR 21 July 2022

CDI Accuracy %

Category
Nov-21

Dec-

21
Jan-22 Feb-21 Mar-22 Apr-22 6m Ave

All Crimes 95.2 97.2 96.4 96.7 97.1 94.2 96.1

CDI Timeliness (NCRS 24hrs) %

Category
Nov 21 Dec-21 Jan-22 Feb-22 Mar-22 Apr-22 May-22

Timeliness –

All Crime
46.7 63.2 42.9 12.6 48.0 61.2 55.1

Time period

No of 

recorded 

crimes

Change 

(no)

Change 

(%)

June 2019-2020 41,494

June 2020-2021 39,981 -1,513 -3.6%

June 2021-2022 50,524 +10,543 +26.4%

P
age 16



gloucestershire.police.uk Slide 9

.08 Performance Management
Causes of concern 1, 2, 3 and 5

• Combination of PEEL recovery gold, Chief Constables 

Performance Board and new Strategic Planning 

Board into single performance and planning focused 

day

• Improving data and benchmarking

• Clear oversight of outcomes

• Setting of aspirational outcome rate of 20% solved for 

all crime

• Commencement of departmental accountability 

meetings between heads of department and ACC’s

• Re-launch of constabulary PDR process

• Commencement of new LPA proactive teams;  

Vanguard teams (2 + 10) with de-centralised 

resources, each led by an Inspector

• Vanguard focuses on NH crime and relentlessly target 

those who indulge in criminality

P
age 17



gloucestershire.police.uk Slide 10

.09 Investigative Standards
Cause of concern 5

Crime Standards and Quality Team:

• Working alongside and harvesting intelligence 
from CSB auditors and closure team to define 
training, communications and support

• Additional Detective Inspector recruited to 
support existing command of D/Supt, DCI, 2 x 
DS, 1 x PC and 2 x Police Staff supervisors –
focused on VCOP and investigative 
improvement

• Closure Team auditing minimum standards of 
investigation, new Apex app

VCOP:

• VCOP audit data demonstrates improving 
picture across VCOP entitlements in previous 
three quarters (July 2021 – March 2022) 

CAIT (inc CEMM and SAMM teams):

• Recruitment of 7 PSIs into CAIT

P
age 18



gloucestershire.police.uk Slide 11

.10
Finance and Medium term 
Financial Planning (MTFP)
Cause of concern 6

Progress against new MTFP:
• 92 additional officers already recruited via 

Police Uplift Programme (of 153)
• Officer headcount now stands at 1,260
• Further 61 officers expected by March 2023 

including 26 officers on course 3/ 22 now in 
training

• Investment in Niche procurement
• Re-provision of Bamfurlong as strategic 

local policing and specialist operations hub

• Police staff growth in particular:
- 24 CSIO for Crime Standards
- 3 CSB auditors
- 20 FCR staff
- 7 PSI’s for CAIT

• CIPFA financial training for senior leaders
• Investment of four new staff into Finance 

Team to build resilience and opportunity

P
age 19



gloucestershire.police.uk Slide 12

.11
Supportive Leadership 

and Wellbeing
All causes of concern

SL&WB progress:

• Wellbeing Manager and Wellbeing Advisor 
now in post and providing significant support 
to workforce

• Development of ‘Wellbeing Approach’ 
document

• Refresh of SL&WB programme by autumn 
2022 (delivered since 2017) aimed at all 
leaders

• Collaboration with F&RS on delivery of 
leadership training

• Delivery of two Innovate courses to develop 
under-represented groups

• Assessment and integration of College of 
Policing products including First Line 
Leadership

P
age 20



gloucestershire.police.uk Slide 13

.12
• Launch of two day Inclusion course (March 2022) – 2 

courses a month planned for 18 months

• Women's Mentoring Programme with Royal Gibraltar 
Police

• Reverse Mentoring Programme 2.0

• Adoption of Yvonne Coghill’s Allyship Model

• Upgraded injured officers policy: hatred warning markers

• CPD programme for all leaders

• Institutional racism workshop at Strategic Development 
forum

• Opportunities for collaboration with Gloucestershire Fire 
and Rescue Service

• Better Together community sports and fun day 28 July

Supportive Leadership 

and Wellbeing (Race and Inclusivity)
All causes of concern

Emma Burke

Kathryn Whitaker

P
age 21



gloucestershire.police.uk Slide 14

.13 Demand and Efficiency
All causes of concern

Led by D/Chief Superintendent Arman Mathieson:

• Creation of a Demand, Efficiency and Continuous 
Improvement (DECI) Board

• Linked to Strategic Planning Board and FMS

• All projects reviewed and aligned to PEEL recovery 
with two focused programmes remaining:

o Demand and Efficiency programme
Continuous Improvement & Innovation
ICT Transformation 
Microsoft Office 365
Duty Management System (Horizon 
Stage)

o Records Management Programme:

Unifi Data Quality 

Unifi Transition 

Niche RMS 

Digital Case Files

• Reinvigorated ‘All Ideas Matter’ database to 
remove hindrance stressors and waste

P
age 22



gloucestershire.police.uk Slide 15

.14
Continuous Improvement and

Innovation (Op Model)
All causes of concern

Aims:

Establish how Effective and Efficient we are by measuring and then understanding the 

relationship between our current and future demand and our current and future capacity and 

capability to meet our demand

Implement a repeatable methodology in order to create a sustainable culture of continuous 

improvement and innovation

• resources identified and seconded

• timeline as below; FCR, 3 x LPA’s complete

• early FCR recommendations led to establishment of an Incident Management and Triage 

team

• CMIS and Ops functions closing on completion

P
age 23



gloucestershire.police.uk Slide 16

.15 ICT Transformation
All causes of concern

Focused on stabilisation and transformation:

• Niche full business case agreed at Constabulary 
Governance Board on 25 April

o Decision ratified at PCC Governance Board 
on 26 April

o Progress being made to stand up resources 
to deliver the project and associated RMS 
projects

• O365 on schedule

• Unit 4 (HR) system 

• New Duty Management System in the pipeline

• Customer Relationship Manager/continuing 
improvements for FCR a priority

• Unifi v8 upgrade to be delivered

P
age 24



gloucestershire.police.uk Slide 17

.16 Potential blockers and barriers 

to effective recovery

• Recruitment pipeline

• Inexperienced workforce, PEQF etc

• Unmet demand from partners e.g. MH 
services and ambulance consuming 
capacity

• ICT architecture and legacy issues

• Increasingly complex case files created by 
national guidance such as AG/DG6

• Finance, increasing cost pressures both on 
Constabulary and employees in particular; 
cost of living expense and inflation 
which has seen some staff accessing 
food vouchers

• Effects of national issues on employee 
morale e.g. pensions, pay and findings 
from ongoing enquiries into police 
misconduct

P
age 25



gloucestershire.police.uk Slide 18

Thank you for listening, your 

observations and questions are 

welcome

We are committed to being an anti-discriminatory organisation.

This means not only acting in a non-discriminatory way, but addressing systemic inequalities, disadvantage and discrimination.

Sensitive

P
age 26


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the previous meeting
	Minutes

	4 HMICFRS PEEL inspection

